
Approved as Amended December 4, 2018 
 

 
PB Draft Minutes Meeting 110618                                                                                    1 of 6 

Town of Fitzwilliam 

Planning Board 

Meeting Minutes 

November 06, 2018 

 

Member’s Present: Suzanne Gray, Chairman; Paul Haynes, Vice Chair; Matt Buonomano; 

Terry Silverman; Alternates Karen Craig and Barbara Young.    Ross Tourigny and Robin Peard Blais, 

Secretary, joined the meeting after it began. 

 

Member’s Not Present:  Charlie Kenison, Selectman’s Representative. 

 

Others Present:  Robin Crowe, applicant; David Wright Applicant’s brother; Dorothy Zug; Neil Watlington, 

Executive Director of NextEra (Chinook Solar), Rich Jordan of TRC, working with NextEra (Chinook Solar) and 

Laurie Hayward, Land Use Administrative Assistant (LUA). 

  

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 

 

The Chair suggested that the Agenda be adjusted to allow members Tourigny and Blais arrive.  The Chair 

asked that, meanwhile, Dorothy Zug speak about Meadowood.    Zug spoke about an earlier committee that 

looked at high value town concerns that were identified as things the Town should pursue, for example 

getting high speed internet.   Zug handed out a brief description of a task force that she is working to put 

together.   She asked members whether they would be interested themselves or know of anyone that she 

might contact. 

 

Zug said that Meadowood is coming to the end of its useful life.   There has been some investigation into 

things that the town might consider.    On December 12, at town hall there will be a meeting to consider 

how a task committee might pursue possible town uses of the property.   She noted that there are buildings 

on site to be considered.    Dorothy is looking for input from the Planning Board.    Silverman is concerned 

about expense to the town.   He noted that there had been some efforts to use some of the buildings; but he 

is concerned about the town taking on added expenses and he is especially concerned about possible 

problematic ground conditions.    Zug indicated that they are aware of concerns connected to the property 

and plan to look at mitigation, including costs, of any problematic grounds issues.   Buonomano spoke 

stating that the property is split and he feels the park on the pond side is more useful as a recreational 

property; but that is also the portion of the property with concerns about hazardous waste.      

 

Blais joined the meeting at 7:12 PM 

 

The Chair caught Blais up and Blais asked Zug if the Select Board was in favor.   Zug stated that the Select 

Board had approved her working on developing a task force. 



Approved as Amended December 4, 2018 
 

 
PB Draft Minutes Meeting 110618                                                                                    2 of 6 

Minutes:  The Chair took up the Meeting of October 16, 2018.   Line 57: correct “or” to “of” in Zoning Board 

of Adjustment.    Revise to clearly show Karen Craig sat as an alternate for Matt Buonomano.   Correct any 

LUC to LUA.   Craig asked that on Line 68: “shorter” be revised to “more concise”.    Haynes referenced Line 

113: his concern was that it wasn’t clear whether the sentence referred to comments Nancy Carney made 

currently or that actually from the minutes of 2017.   After a brief discussion it was agreed that the wording 

should be changed to clarify that it was in the previous set of minutes.    Line 123:  The Chair asked if the 

sentences regarding fences was about prior minutes also.   Silverman stated that he believes the staement 

was not about prior minutes.   It was agreed that sections of the minutes referencing portions of prior 

minutes have quotation marks to help indicate that.   Craig noted a parenthesis on line 122 that was not 

closed.   It was agreed that it is an error and would be removed. The Vice Chair moved, the Secretary 

seconded, Buonomano abstained, and it was it was voted to approve as amended.    

 

The Chair took up the Site Walk Minutes of October 17.   Blais stated that historically these are read into the 

next meeting minutes.     

 

Blais read: “October 17, 2018, Site Walk of Niemela Property, 705 NH Route 12 South; Tax Map 8 Lot 46  

Applicant Robin Crowe proposes a business consisting of a Studio/Workshop creating ceramics, teaching 
ceramics classes and selling ceramics. 

 

Attendees: Applicant Robin Crowe, Robin's brother, David Wright, Realtor Heather Peterson, Planning 
Board Members: Paul Haynes, Suzanne Gray, Ross Tourigny, Terry Silverman and Robin Peard Blais, 
Secretary 

 

Members walked the outside of the property focusing on the building to the North of the property. The 
building to the South is a residence which is part of the property but not included in the proposed 
business plan. Ms. Peterson pointed out possible parking area, location of septic and drilled well. 
Members walked to the back to view the stream and observed a moist gully in front of building which 
appears to be highway run off. 

  
The group then moved inside the building which was the former Machine Shop/Garage.  There is a 
former office area in the front of the building with a bathroom.  The group toured the rooms to the 
North end- front of the building where Ms. Crowe hopes to have her studio and workshop area. The 
middle of the building houses a bathroom which Applicant explained she would upgrade and make 
handicap accessible. There is a large room which is the former garage with overhead door on the South 
side. Ms. Crowe explained she has no immediate plans for this area. The rear of the building is where Ms. 
Crowe hopes to have her kiln and storage. Ms. Peterson pointed out electric system, heating system, and 
water sources within the building. Ms. Crowe gave a brief explanation of her plans for the building and 
answered questions the board asked while viewing the property.   Robin Peard Blais, Planning Board 
Secretary” 

 

Public Hearing:   7:28 PM. The Chair opened the Public Hearing Continuance for the Robin Crowe application 

for Site Plan Review regarding the request to be permitted to use the commercial building on the property 

currently owned by Ralph and Helen Niemela at 705 NH Route 12 South, Tax Map 8, Lot 46, in the General 



Approved as Amended December 4, 2018 
 

 
PB Draft Minutes Meeting 110618                                                                                    3 of 6 

Industrial District, for a business related to creating and selling ceramic works and where elements of the 

proposed business may involve a studio/workshop, a retail store, making various crafts, and teaching others 

to create ceramic works and other crafts. 

 

The Chair asked Crowe whether she had ever been able to find documents regarding the septic system.    

Crowe stated that there are no such plans that she could find.    There was a brief discussion about how long 

ago the septic system was installed.   Members decided that it was sometime after 1976 or around 1976. 

 

Silverman asked how Crowe, in her ceramics business, handled the waste in the slip.   Crowe stated that she 

tends to have very little waste as she reuses the slurry.    The Chair asked about the planned location of lights.   

Crowe used a photo of the property to show where lights are proposed on north corner, south corner and 

east corner of the commercial building to provide light for all of the parking area and the business entrance.    

The Chair noted the entrance from the road and the proposed parking plan. 

 

Ross Tourigny joined the meeting at 7:35 PM. 

 

Tourigny asked whether the applicant had any inspections done on the property yet.   Crowe stated that there 

have been no building inspection or septic inspections.   The Chair asked whether members had any concerns 

regarding electrical.    Silverman mentioned that he has concerns about the electrical and other items, 

including that there is some separation of exterior bricks from the underlying wall structure and some bowing 

of the walls.    He also thinks that the exits are too far separated and the doors, at 32”, may be too small.   

Silverman also has concerns about the wood shed and about the venting of the kiln.    The Chair explained to 

the applicant that the concern is greater where there are plans for the public to be in the space and she has 

several concerns for the safety of the building and concerns regarding possible sanitary issues with the septic 

system.    

 

Tourigny asked to review the plans and Crowe’s proposed use again.   Crowe showed where she expected to 

have members of the public working with ceramics.   She showed that the kiln would be in a separate area.   

Crowe stated that she hopes to have an electrician in to take out unused parts of an old electrical 

configuration.   Blais asked about the bathrooms.   Crowe explained that one would be used for handicap 

access and the second would not be handicap accessible.   

 

Buonomano spoke regarding his own experience with a problematic septic system.    He stated that he would 

suggest that the property have a septic system designed for the property.    Tourigny spoke about the 

importance of knowing whether the septic system meets state standards.    Tourigny spoke about his concerns 

and pushed the idea that there should be a safety inspection.    The Chair asked members for any additional 

questions.     

 

Chair opened the hearing to any other questions.    Silverman asked Tourigny to elaborate on his concerns.    

Tourigny noted Silverman’s mention of concerns about the bricks, stating that he is concerned that the 



Approved as Amended December 4, 2018 
 

 
PB Draft Minutes Meeting 110618                                                                                    4 of 6 

underlying structure may be bad and the problem larger than just the bricks.   He noted that he feels there is 

a possible issue with the electrical system.    He pointed out that other things like the septic system may be 

problematic.   Tourigny also pointed out that he has seen situations where owners could not get insurance 

because of physical issues with a building.    

 

The Chair asked Silverman for his sense of this.   Silverman mentioned that the Zoning Board of Adjustment 

also had concerns about the need for an inspection.   Silverman urged Crowe to get the inspections.    The 

Chair reiterated that Crowe would need to have insurance if she is working with the public and some of the 

types of issues discussed could make getting that insurance impossible.    Crowe agreed to have the property 

inspected, to include the buildings and the septic system. 

 

The Chair moved that the hearing be continued to December 4, 2018 at 7:00 PM to allow the applicant to 

have the property inspected.   The motion was seconded and voted unanimously. 

 

Old Business:  The Board took up Buonomano draft letter to Xtreme Auto.   The Chair thanked Matt for writing 

the draft letter.   The Chair noted that the Board now has all of the minutes.    She added that there is more 

complete information now on which to base the letter.    

 

The Chair asked for members suggestions.   Silverman stated that he thought they were just going to send this 

issue over to the Select Board for them to write a letter.   The Chair expressed, that aside, the Planning Board 

does need to tell the Select Board what the Planning Board issue is with this property.    Buonomano spoke 

and mentioned his own concerns about the draft letter, including that there has been top soil removed maybe 

as much as two years ago and he questions the 100-foot frontage requirement and whether DOT might have 

evidence that the set back is 100 feet or at least the state required 75 feet.   At the end of the discussion, 

Buonomano offered to do another draft.   It was agreed that Buonomano draft another letter and that 

Buonomano have the new draft letter available for the December 4, 2018 meeting. 

 

Prime Wetlands. The Chair requested that the planned meeting regarding Prime Wetlands be moved to the 

December 4, 2018.   The Chair added that changing the date for the meeting would allow for more time for 

notification of both Planning Board and Conservation Members to plan to attend that meeting.    Blais stated 

that there is no plan to work on anything regarding Prime Wetlands before this year’s Town Meeting.    Blais 

stated that she did not think that they need to meet.    Silverman added that there is no funding for this 

year.    Blais stated that the Conservation Commission does not need to be involved.    Blais feels it is more 

important that the sub-committee meet than that they have a full meeting.    Blais stated that she would 

discuss with Susan Silverman and get back to the Planning Board with a future time, perhaps January.     

 

The Chair addressed the question whether the Ordinance covers the Prime Wetlands.    Blais and Silverman 

stated that the town can consider the wetlands listed as Prime Wetlands even though the state has not 

approved.    The Chair read from the language approved at town meeting and written into our Ordinance.   

The Chair read the language that included: “designated by the town and approved by the state”, explaining 



Approved as Amended December 4, 2018 
 

 
PB Draft Minutes Meeting 110618                                                                                    5 of 6 

that it is the “and approved by the state” that makes this problematic.    The LUA noted that a temporary 

solution would be to put something in the Ordinance that covers any wetlands they wish to designate as 

“high value wetlands”.   The LUA noted that Silverman had always been correct that the state allows towns 

to make more restrictive ordinances and regulations for wetlands; but they cannot be called “Prime 

Wetlands” unless the state says they meet their requirements. 

 

NextEra Solar:  The Chair addressed Neil Watlington and Rich Jordan, from NextEra, and they stepped 

forward.   Silverman had a copy of a letter the LUA had received the prior week and he questioned the 

information on that letter.    Silverman noted that there are clear factual errors.   The Chair noted that they 

had not had the letter long enough to, without notice, address anything in the letter at this meeting.    She 

noted the Planning Board’s own policy that they have something four business days in advance in order to 

fully review it in a meeting.    

 

Buonomano referring to minimal information provided in a previous meeting, questioned whether the 

project actually was truly a 30 MW facility.   Buonomano asked that in the future, NextEra provide more 

detailed data and numbers to prove the 30 Mega Watt claim.    

 

The Chair asked that the minutes show that the letter from Chinook is incorrect.    She stated that it was 

addressed incorrectly and incorrectly stated that the Chair, Suzanne Gray, was at the September 25, 2018 

meeting when, in fact, only Laurie Hayward, Land Use Administrative Assistant, and Debbie Favreau, Town 

Administrative Assistant attended that meeting.     Watlington and Jordan asked that they be given time at 

the next meeting.   Board Members agreed that they would be available for a December 4 at 7:30 PM 

meeting. 

 

Neil Watlington and Rich Jordan left the meeting. 

 

Work Session:  Rules of Procedure.   The meeting running well past 9:00 PM, it was agreed that they would 

not take up the Rules of Procedure this evening. 

 

New Business:   The Chair took up the Land Use Budget for 2019.   It was pointed out that the total budget 

was level funded and the total was just a few dollars less than the final approved budget in 2018.   The LUA 

explained that the proposed budget most significant items are a roughly $3,000 decrease in the salary line 

item; a continued funding of the line for Professional services, there if it is needed to allow the payment for 

outside assistance on complex issues; and a new $3,000 amount to fund any Legal expenses.     

 

There was a discussion regarding the Chinook Solar Project and the implications of current state and federal 

statutes that cover solar installations of 30 Mega Watts or more.    

 



Approved as Amended December 4, 2018 
 

 
PB Draft Minutes Meeting 110618                                                                                    6 of 6 

There being no additional business to conduct, the meeting was adjourned at 9:36 PM.   The next regular 

meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November 20, 2018.   The Crowe Site Plan Review is continued to 

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 at 7:00 PM. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Laurie Hayward 

Land Use Administrative Assistant 


